1	XAVIER BECERRA		
2	Attorney General of California JAMES M. LEDAKIS		
3	Supervising Deputy Attorney General MICHAEL M. KARIMI		
4	Deputy Attorney General State Bar No. 260906		
5	600 West Broadway, Suite 1800 San Diego, CA 92101		
6	P.O. Box 85266 San Diego, CA 92186-5266		
7	Telephone: (619) 738-9607 Facsimile: (619) 645-2061		
8	E-mail: Michael.Karimi@doj.ca.gov		
9	Attorneys for Complainant		
10	BEFORE THE		
	BOARD OF PHARMACY DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS		
11	STATE OF C	ALIFORNIA	
12			
13	In the Matter of the Statement of Issues Against:	Case No. 6892	
14			
15	NICOLE LEE PATTON, AKA NICOLE DENDY, AKA NICOLE TORRES	STATEMENT OF ISSUES	
1617	Pharmacy Technician Registration Applicant		
18	Respondent.		
19			
20	<u>PARTIES</u>		
21	1. Anne Sodergren (Complainant) brings this Statement of Issues solely in her official		
22	capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs.		
23	2. On or about May 20, 2019, the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs		
24	received an application for a Pharmacy Technician Registration from Nicole Lee Patton, aka		
25	Nicole Dendy, aka Nicole Torres (Respondent). On or about May 15, 2019, Nicole Lee Patton		
26	certified under penalty of perjury to the truthfulness of all statements, answers, and		
27	representations in the application. The Board denied the application on November 18, 2019.		
28	///		
	1		

- (b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this code, the provisions of this division shall govern the suspension and revocation of licenses on grounds specified in paragraphs (1) and (2) of subdivision (a).
- (c) A license shall not be denied, suspended, or revoked on the grounds of a lack of good moral character or any similar ground relating to an applicant's character, reputation, personality, or habits.

6. Section 480 of the Code states:

- (a) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the grounds that the applicant has one of the following:
- (1) Been convicted of a crime. A conviction within the meaning of this section means a plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere. Any action that a board is permitted to take following the establishment of a conviction may be taken when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal, or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under the provisions of Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code.
- (2) Done any act involving dishonesty, fraud, or deceit with the intent to substantially benefit himself or herself or another, or substantially injure another.
- (3) (A) Done any act that if done by a licentiate of the business or profession in question, would be grounds for suspension or revocation of license.
- (B) The board may deny a license pursuant to this subdivision only if the crime or act is substantially related to the qualifications, functions, or duties of the business or profession for which application is made.
- (b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this code, a person shall not be denied a license solely on the basis that he or she has been convicted of a felony if he or she has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation under Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 4852.01) of Title 6 of Part 3 of the Penal Code or that he or she has been convicted of a misdemeanor if he or she has met all applicable requirements of the criteria of rehabilitation developed by the board to evaluate the rehabilitation of a person when considering the denial of a license under subdivision (a) of Section 482.
- (c) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this code, a person shall not be denied a license solely on the basis of a conviction that has been dismissed pursuant to Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code. An applicant who has a conviction that has been dismissed pursuant to Section 1203.4, 1203.4a, or 1203.41 of the Penal Code shall provide proof of the dismissal.
- (d) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the ground that the applicant knowingly made a false statement of fact that is required to be revealed in the application for the license.
- (e) This section shall become inoperative on July 1, 2020, and, as of January 1, 2021, is repealed.

7. Section 481 of the Code states:

Each board under the provisions of this code shall develop criteria to aid it, when considering the denial, suspension or revocation of a license, to determine

conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

28

1	(a) Procurement of a license by fraud or misrepresentation.	
1		
2	(f) The commission of any act involving moral turnitude dishenesty, froud	
3	(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or corruption, whether the act is committed in the course of relations as a licensee or otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not.	
4		
5	(h) The administering to oneself, of any controlled substance, or the use of any	
6	dangerous drug or of alcoholic beverages to the extent or in a manner as to be	
7	dangerous or injurious to oneself, to a person holding a license under this chapter, or to any other person or to the public, or to the extent that the use impairs the ability of the person to conduct with safety to the public the practice authorized by the license.	
8	(i) Except as otherwise authorized by law, knowingly selling, furnishing, giving	
9	away, or administering, or offering to sell, furnish, give away, or administer, any controlled substance to an addict.	
10	(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the	
11	United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.	
12	(k) The conviction of more than one misdemeanor or any felony involving the	
13	use, consumption, or self-administration of any dangerous drug or alcoholic beverage, or any combination of those substances.	
14	(l) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications,	
15	functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this	
16	state regulating controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall	
17	be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to	
18	fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense	
19	substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo	
20	contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of	
21	conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under	
22	Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of	
23	guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment.	
24		
25	///	
26		
27		
28		

27

28

Offender Alcohol program.

to, among other things, complete 80 hours of community service and complete a six-month First

15. The circumstances surrounding the offense are that on January 31, 2016, Respondent drove her vehicle off the roadway and over the adjacent raised curb, damaging both right side tires and rims of her vehicle. Respondent left her vehicle and was brought back to the scene of the collision by a deputy with the Orange County Sheriff's Department. Respondent displayed objective signs of alcohol intoxication and was arrested. Samples of Respondent's breath following her arrest revealed she had a blood alcohol content of .15%.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION

(November 22, 2017 Conviction – Possession of Drug Paraphernalia)

- 16. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code section 480 in that on or about November 22, 2017, in a criminal proceeding entitled *People of the State of California v.*Nicole Patton in Orange County Superior Court, Case Number 17HM10721 M A, Respondent was convicted on her plea of guilty of a misdemeanor violation of Health and Safety Code section 11364(a). As a result of the conviction, Respondent was ordered to, among other things, serve 30 days in the Orange County Jail.
- 17. The circumstances surrounding the offense are that on September 18, 2017, Respondent was contacted by deputies with the Orange County Sheriff's Department and found to be carrying in her front pocket a clear glass pipe commonly used to smoke methamphetamine. The pipe had burn marks and contained white crystalline residue consistent with methamphetamine. A second methamphetamine pipe was located within the bags Respondent had with her.

THIRD CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION

(November 22, 2017 Conviction - Possession of a Controlled Substance & Paraphernalia)

18. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code section 480 in that on or about November 22, 2017, in a criminal proceeding entitled *People of the State of California v*. *Nicole Patton* in Orange County Superior Court, Case Number 17HM11196 M A, Respondent was convicted on her plea of guilty of misdemeanor violations of Health and Safety Code sections 11377(a) and 11364(a). As a result of the conviction, Respondent was ordered to, among other things, serve 30 days in the Orange County Jail.

19. The circumstances surrounding the offense are that on November 20, 2017, Respondent was contacted by deputies with the Orange County Sheriff's Department and found to be carrying in her backpack a clear glass pipe commonly used to smoke methamphetamine. Contained within the end of the pipe was a usable quantity of apparent methamphetamine.

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION

(Unprofessional Conduct – Dangerous Use of Alcohol)

20. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code section 4301, subdivision (h) in that she used alcohol to the extent and in a manner that was dangerous and injurious to herself or the public, as described in paragraphs 14-15 above, which are herein incorporated by reference.

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION

(Unprofessional Conduct – Violation of Controlled Substances Laws)

21. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code section 4301, subdivisions (j) and (*l*) in that she was convicted of violating controlled substance laws as described in paragraphs 16-19 above, which are herein incorporated by reference.

DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS

- 22. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent, Complainant alleges:
- 23. On or about June 3, 2016 Respondent was found in violation of probation in Orange County Superior Court Case Number 16HM02113 M A for failing to enroll in a six-month First Offender Alcohol Program by April 26, 2016. An order to serve 10 days in the Orange County Jail as a result of the violation was stayed pending completion of the Alcohol Program.
- 24. On or about February 24, 2017 Respondent was found in violation of probation in Orange County Superior Court Case Number 16HM02113 M A for failing to complete a sixmonth First Offender Alcohol Program following her termination from the program on July 21, 2016, and for failing to report to the Orange County Jail to serve 6 days, which had been imposed on June 3, 2016. Respondent was ordered to serve 30 days in the Orange County Jail, and probation was ordered terminated.

PRAYER WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision: 1. Denying the application of Nicole Lee Patton, aka Nicole Dendy, aka Nicole Torres for a Pharmacy Technician Registration; Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 2. February 26, 2020 DATED: ANNE SODERGREN **Executive Officer Board of Pharmacy** Department of Consumer Affairs State of California Complainant SD2020700104 72119982.docx